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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Good morning,

          3  everybody. I apologize for starting a little bit

          4  late. I always like to try and get going on time. I

          5  just want to first explain a little bit of -- well,

          6  I guess the first thing I should do is introduce

          7  myself. I'm Lew Fidler, Chairman of the Youth

          8  Services Committee. I'm joined at this point by my

          9  colleagues, Councilwoman Sara Gonzalez, Councilwoman

         10  Melissa Mark-Viverito, and the Committee staff.

         11  Councilman Oddo was in the room a moment ago, I'm

         12  sure he'll be back.

         13                 Just logistically, we have two very

         14  separate distinct topics before us today. One is the

         15  resolution on the cuts to the 21st Century

         16  Leadership Program, a youth program throughout the

         17  State of New York, and we'll be getting to that in a

         18  second.

         19                 The other is whether or not the veto

         20  of the Mayor of Intro. 341-A, the bill that would

         21  ban the use of aluminum metal bats in competitive

         22  high school sports in the City of New York should be

         23  sustained. And when we have an appropriate number of

         24  members of this Committee present, we are going to

         25  switch over to the override issue, but since I do
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          2  not want to delay and retain anyone further, I

          3  appreciate, always appreciate the people who are

          4  coming in to testify for this Committee. We are

          5  going to start with the oversight and the hearing on

          6  the resolution of the 21st Century leadership

          7  program.

          8                 Two months ago in late February, the

          9  State Education Department sent a letter to 207 21st

         10  Century learning centers in the State notifying them

         11  that due to a shortage of funds there would be no

         12  Request for Proposal, as expected, and that these

         13  programs would be shut down during the summer.

         14                 These after school programs serve

         15  approximately 34,000 children, 60 percent of whom

         16  are located in New York City. That's about 125

         17  locations in the City, open every day from three to

         18  6:00 p.m., serving 20,000 children and their working

         19  parents.

         20                 The State Budget passed by the

         21  Legislature on April 1st, appears to include

         22  approximately $7.5 million in aid to these programs,

         23  which is less than a quarter of the estimated 31

         24  million needed to keep the programs open for a year.

         25                 It's also notable that since the
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          2  creation in 1997 of this program, these federal

          3  programs have not been allocated amounts even close

          4  to what was authorized for them under the 21st

          5  Century Community Learning Centers Act.

          6                 The total amount authorized by

          7  Congress for the programs nationally was 2.5 billion

          8  for Fiscal Year 2007. Yet, the amount actually

          9  appropriated was about 981 million. This resolution

         10  calls on Congress, Governor Spitzer and the State

         11  Legislature to ensure the continued operation of

         12  these valuable programs.

         13                 I'm going to call our witnesses in

         14  panels. Our first panel is Lucy Friedman from The

         15  After School Corporation and Arielle Bernstein from

         16  Fight Crime: Invest In Kids New York.

         17                 MS. FRIEDMAN: Good morning. I'm Lucy

         18  Friedman from the After School Corporation, as

         19  Council Member Fidler said, and I want to first

         20  really thank you for having this hearing and really

         21  thank the Youth Services Committee for its attention

         22  to youth. I mean, we haven't seen such an active,

         23  strong supportive committee before, and it's really

         24  exciting to have such a committee here, and so I

         25  want to genuinely thank you, but specifically thank
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          2  you for this resolution, and I'm here obviously to

          3  speak in favor of Resolution 742-A.

          4                 I think as many of you know, TASC was

          5  created in 1998, and we are an intermediary, we help

          6  and support after school programs throughout the

          7  City. We've helped start about over 300 programs,

          8  and we work through community groups, so Boys and

          9  Girls Club Settlement Houses, South Asian Youth

         10  Organizations, small ones, as well as large ones.

         11  And one of the reasons that we have been able to

         12  help start so many programs is the great support of

         13  and resources through the 21st Century Community

         14  Learning Centers, that was a national initiative

         15  that was started with $40 million in 1998, and by

         16  2001 was at a billion dollars and New York, was

         17  getting about 90 million, a little over 90 million,

         18  85 million of which was supporting students. And

         19  they've given out the money in cohorts and the issue

         20  today is with the first cohort which was for five

         21  years the funds were running out, the expectation,

         22  and we had been told until February that they would

         23  be issuing a Request for Proposal so that current

         24  programs could reapply, and then we were told

         25  precipitously in February that there wasn't funds,
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          2  which meant that these programs, and as the Council

          3  member said, that many of them in New York were at

          4  risk, 85 programs in New York are at risk -- I'm

          5  sorry, 118 programs in New York are at risk of not

          6  having funding. So, clearly that just creates

          7  upheavals for families and kids, not knowing how to

          8  plan for next year, and I think it's also damaging

          9  to the movement at large, because one of the things

         10  that we've really worked hard to do and with the

         11  Council's terrific support have started doing, is

         12  really changing the whole perception about after

         13  school and seeing it as something that every kid

         14  should be able to have access to, a quality after

         15  school program, not just baby-sitting, not just

         16  child care, but a quality after school program, and

         17  many of these programs were providing that service.

         18  If it stops, it means that families will think that

         19  we can't depend on schools and the community

         20  services to provide this, and that I think will be

         21  critical in terms of our long-range goals, as well

         22  as obviously the specific damage and hardship and

         23  upheaval to the individual families.

         24                 TASC is requesting this year $9.3

         25  million, both to continue the programs that the
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          2  Council has generously been supporting for the last

          3  year or two years, as well as to make up for some of

          4  the funds that we anticipate losing.

          5                 As a result of this cut, we have had

          6  some funds restored in the Legislature, did restore

          7  what we believe is about $14 million of the $30

          8  million that was cut. Little complicated, seven and

          9  a half we know is allocated to the Office of

         10  Children and Family Services. We believe that there

         11  is another 6 million that was authorized for the

         12  various school districts for this purpose, although

         13  we're still trying to hammer that out.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: So are we.

         15                 MS. FRIEDMAN: So, I want to thank you

         16  and will be happy to answer any questions you may

         17  have.

         18                 MS. BERNSTEIN: Good morning. Thank

         19  you very much. My name is Arielle Bernstein. I'm the

         20  Deputy Director at Fight Crime: Invest In Kids New

         21  York, and I think this might be one of the first

         22  times we've actually testified before the Council,

         23  so I'll give you a little introduction about who we

         24  are.

         25                 Fight Crime: Invest In Kids New York
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          2  is a Statewide organization, part of a national

          3  organization based in DC. We are one of ten state

          4  offices around in the United States, and we have

          5  over 300 members Statewide.

          6                 Our members include law enforcement

          7  leaders, Sheriffs, District Attorneys, Chiefs of

          8  Police, as well as crime survivors, who believe and

          9  support early investments in kids and youth from the

         10  crime prevention perspective.

         11                 Out of this we've developed a

         12  four-point crime prevention plan that starts right

         13  at the beginning, getting kids on track with the

         14  prevention of child abuse and neglect, and goes all

         15  the way to the end to make sure that kids are

         16  successful adults, making sure that kids who fall

         17  off the track have interventions. In that four-point

         18  crime prevention plan is the point four quality

         19  after school programs, which our members feel very

         20  strongly about.

         21                 In New York City we have several

         22  members, including the District Attorney of Kings

         23  County, Bronx County, Richmond County and Queens

         24  County, and they all heavily strongly support and

         25  are in favor of the resolution being adopted.
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          2                 Our members know quality after school

          3  programs as a solution to the crime time for

          4  juvenile crime. Their personal experience and

          5  professional experience, and now the research

          6  confirms that from 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. is when

          7  you'll see a spike in crime, specifically among

          8  juveniles. It's when they get out of school, and

          9  often times don't have quality programs or

         10  activities to occupy them.

         11                 Unfortunately, 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.

         12  is also a time where kids experience more risky

         13  behavior, so they're more likely to experiment with

         14  drugs, alcohol and things of that nature.

         15                 Fortunately, we know about after

         16  school programs, quality after school programs, when

         17  we invest in them can change and can transform the

         18  crime time from juvenile crime into a prime time for

         19  youth enrichment, and that's why our members are so

         20  supportive of these types of programs and are urging

         21  you to adopt the proposal.

         22                 Just to consider from our law

         23  enforcement perspective, our members know when you

         24  invest in these programs, not only are you getting

         25  kids more on track, and you're preventing them from

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  going down a path of crime later, you're also

          3  reducing victimization and you're saving a whole lot

          4  of money in the longrun.

          5                 From our law enforcement perspective

          6  specifically, you know, one of the things I had

          7  asked for you to consider today is that they know

          8  that right now in New York City it costs about

          9  $171,000 to lock a young person off in secure

         10  detention, compared to, I know as Lucy could

         11  probably speak to, you know, TASC has indicated that

         12  programs, after school programs that are effective,

         13  and quality after school programs, can cost as

         14  little as $1,600. So, I again welcome your questions

         15  and I'm happy to be here to answer them. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you, both.

         17  As I said, I mentioned Councilman Oddo is here and

         18  we will be joined by Councilman Gerson, who is a

         19  member of this Committee. Ms. Bernstein, let me just

         20  ask you, because your organization is Statewide, and

         21  we're joined by Councilman Dennis Gallagher as well,

         22  you know, we managed to come to the point where the

         23  State Legislature passed the budget that somehow

         24  omitted at least $16 million of funding for after

         25  school programs. There are 51 members of the City
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          2  Council, every one of us believes in after school

          3  programs, I can't imagine that our colleagues in the

          4  State government feel any differently. How did this

          5  slip through the cracks?

          6                 MS. BERNSTEIN: You know, and that's a

          7  good question, and I will also welcome my other

          8  panelist to speak on it. I think that what you

          9  ultimately have when you're looking at the budget is

         10  a priority issue. There are so many people hammering

         11  on the State Legislature to make their programs a

         12  priority. From our perspective, we would like the

         13  Legislature to invest in what we know is effective

         14  and what works, and that's what we speak to. Just

         15  unfortunately, I think priorities vary.

         16                 MS. FRIEDMAN: And I think what

         17  happened this year was complicated. One was because

         18  it's a federal program, the State Department of Ed

         19  said it's a federal problem. You know, this program

         20  didn't belong to the State Legislature, it was a

         21  federal program, and so the complication, and as

         22  much as we can blame the feds on many things, we

         23  have lots of problems with what is happening there,

         24  and as you said, the authorization is for 2.25

         25  billion and it's only authorized at 981 million, I
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          2  think what happened here is we had very little time,

          3  until February we didn't think it was a problem, so

          4  we didn't have an opportunity to really educate, and

          5  because it was federal funds, there wasn't a sense

          6  of ownership.

          7                 But, you know, I'm absolutely with

          8  you that it's something the legislators do support

          9  and we know it's good for families for safety, for

         10  so many reasons, that we need to keep raising

         11  attention to it, and that's one reason we feel so

         12  supported and pleased that the Council is doing this

         13  resolution.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Well, where do we

         15  go from here, though, and I ask this of both of you.

         16  Clearly, this is a State administered youth program,

         17  as opposed to the many millions and millions of

         18  dollars we spent here in the City of New York and

         19  appropriate in the City of New York, and as you

         20  know, we push the envelope every year, the Council

         21  adds money for after school programming of one kind

         22  or another, be it TASC or CASA or any of the other

         23  many programs. And you know, the Legislature has

         24  passed the budget. What happens now? Is this a

         25  meaningless resolution that we're passing, or, you
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          2  know, is there some hope that you can see? I realize

          3  I'd rather have the State Education Department to

          4  answer those questions but they declined our

          5  invitation.

          6                 MS. FRIEDMAN: Well, I think by

          7  passing the resolution it raises the awareness of

          8  the issue. It says to the State that the City is

          9  taking this very responsibly. And as I said, the

         10  City really can take the lead here, because the City

         11  has invested so much in after school. It's not

         12  shirking their responsibility and saying, oh, you,

         13  State, do it. So, I think it will bring more

         14  attention to it. We are now working on technical

         15  amendments to make sure that at least the 15 million

         16  that we believe is there, gets out.

         17                 You know, we'll look at a

         18  supplementary budget, and we're pressing the

         19  Regents, and we'll look, you know, though we don't

         20  like to, we'll look for some private funds as well

         21  to be a stop gap, as we analyze which programs are

         22  impacted.

         23                 You know, we're hoping --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: That's a good

         25  question. How do we know which programs are
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          2  impacted? There's not going to be an RFP. I mean,

          3  State Education told us what they're going to do,

          4  they're going to have a quarter to a half of the

          5  money that they had before. You know, they can't

          6  just downsize every program. So, some programs are

          7  going to cease to exist. And they're going to cease

          8  to exist in the summer when the Legislature is

          9  likely out of session. So, you know, doesn't the hue

         10  and cry have to happen now? So, those are two

         11  separate questions I have.

         12                 MS. FRIEDMAN: Well, it does. And we

         13  will organize, and it's certainly part of our plan,

         14  and I know Fight Crime: Invest In Kids' plan to

         15  mobilize parents and to let their legislators know.

         16  You know, it's always a sort of challenge, you know,

         17  it's not going to happen til the summer or

         18  September, to get people concerned and anxious now.

         19                 We are also working with the State

         20  Department of Ed to do some no cost extension, so if

         21  some programs have some accruals, that may help them

         22  go a little bit. And if we can get half the funding,

         23  half the year funding, I think our goal will then be

         24  to push for supplementary funds and try to figure it

         25  out but keep the programs alive.
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          2                 You know, I think some programs may

          3  choose not to continue. We're really still trying to

          4  figure it out, and of course, any advice you would

          5  have we would appreciate.

          6                 MS. BERNSTEIN: I think as Lucy said,

          7  in the immediate sense, in terms of the impact this

          8  resolution could potentially have, yes, $14 million

          9  has been identified that can supplement these

         10  programs, but it hasn't been identified necessarily

         11  which programs it's going to go to, and, you know,

         12  if it ultimately will be 21st century dollars, which

         13  was the original intention of the requests.

         14                 So, to have a resolution come out and

         15  say that we're committed to keeping this 21st

         16  Century programs afloat, I think can give a lot of

         17  guidance and direction to how those dollars are

         18  spent.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: And I guess my

         20  last question is, you know, as much as I've directed

         21  my comments now towards the State, it's really

         22  truthfully the blame lays on the federal level for

         23  not authorizing, appropriating what they've

         24  authorized. What efforts are being made to talk to

         25  the New York Congressional Delegation, if any? And

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  has anyone suggested to you there is any hope?

          3                 MS. FRIEDMAN: Well, I think there is

          4  some hope for some increases. We're not going to see

          5  a doubling. But I think there is some feeling that

          6  now there will be a small increase next year and

          7  we'll continue pushing it. And whether that money

          8  will flow soon enough to have an impact on these

          9  programs, I'm not sure. But, in fact, a lot of us

         10  will be in Washington next Monday and Tuesday, and

         11  visiting many members of the New York Congressional

         12  Delegation as we can on Tuesday, urging them to

         13  increase the appropriation.

         14                 MS. BERNSTEIN: Fight Crime: Invest In

         15  Kids is a national organization, in a good way,

         16  because we are supportive of No Child Left Behind

         17  aspects that affect 21st century funding. And we

         18  actually do work in all the States. So, in addition

         19  to New York we will actually be looking at other

         20  targets in other states as well, to try to move

         21  these forward.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: The more, the

         23  merrier.

         24                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         25  questions for either of these witnesses?
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          2                 Thank you both very much. Could we

          3  get Council Member Mark-Viverito back, so we can

          4  switch over to -- do we know where she went? As I

          5  said, we now have the appropriate number of Council

          6  members present. I'm going to switch over to the

          7  issue of Intro. 341-A so that we can take that

          8  separately so that we can continue our panel on the

          9  21st Century leadership funding.

         10                 I have missed one Youth Services

         11  Committee meeting since I became the Chair, and it

         12  took a hospital stay to keep me from being here for

         13  the last hearing on the metal bat ban.

         14                 And I have to tell you, that was

         15  very, very frustrating to me. There was so much that

         16  I felt needed to be said, and then to not only have

         17  some of our local newspapers take this Council to

         18  task for doing something that I consider to be

         19  absolutely necessary to the protection of kids, was

         20  more than irritating, and to have and to read the

         21  Mayor's veto message was more than disappointing.

         22                 Yesterday the Daily News, Brooklyn

         23  Sports Section ran an article and I'm going to ask

         24  Counsel to make that article part of the record. It

         25  wasn't a shill piece for either side, it was a
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          2  pretty well balanced article that talked about the

          3  pros and cons of our quote/unquote intrusion into

          4  sports, and I want to read a couple of the quotes

          5  that this reporter put in the paper from people who

          6  are on the front line in this issue. And we heard

          7  from some of these people at one of our prior

          8  hearings, two of our prior hearings.

          9                 "I don't understand how they could

         10  say the ball doesn't come off the metal bat faster.

         11  I'm shocked when I read that this hasn't been

         12  proven. It seems like the ball explodes off the

         13  bat." That was a fellow by the name of Bill Tripidy,

         14  who is a high school umpire.

         15                 "I'm for wooden bats. I understand it

         16  might be a financial issue, but I'm more into safety

         17  for the kids. I think that wooden bats level the

         18  playing field all the way around." Aide Guttierez,

         19  coach at All Hollows.

         20                 "It will be easy to see guys swinging

         21  the bat when scouting. You can make an easy

         22  evaluation of guys swinging wood. If a kid can

         23  handle wood, he's got bat potential." Ed Blankmeyer,

         24  St. John's Baseball Coach. And that's a direct

         25  response to the Mayor's suggestion and, you know, I
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          2  don't think the Mayor is much of a baseball

          3  aficionado when he says, the Mayor says in his veto

          4  message, "Because batting statistics for players

          5  using wood bats generally are lower ... requiring

          6  city baseball athletes to use wood bats would place

          7  them at a competitive disadvantage." That's just

          8  absolute and utter nonsense to suggest that scouts

          9  at college level or professional level don't know

         10  that wood and metal perform differently and which

         11  kids are playing with wood and which kids are

         12  playing with metal is utterly naive. Because the

         13  fact of the matter is scouts, and we had testimony

         14  here, that our kids will be at an advantage in terms

         15  of scouting for college and professional careers

         16  because of the fact that they use wood instead of

         17  metal. It is the exact opposite of what the Mayor

         18  has said.

         19                 This article also goes into some of

         20  the science, much of which has been presented to

         21  this Committee in one form or another and I just

         22  want to read something that is in this article, and

         23  I apologize for holding this close to my failing

         24  eyes in this wonderfully lit room.

         25                 "Alan Nathan, a physicist at the
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          2  University of Illinois at Urbanta Champaign, who has

          3  done extensive studies in bat ball contact,

          4  estimates the difference between metal and wood hits

          5  is at most five miles an hour."

          6                 "Kettering University physicist,

          7  Daniel A. Russell, who has been a paid consultant to

          8  metal bat makers says it's eight miles per hour

          9  faster. That's largely because of what's known as

         10  the trampoline effect. When a ball collides with

         11  wood, it loses most of its burst. A hollow bat acts

         12  like a spring, propelling the ball to even greater

         13  distances. It's like jumping off the floor and

         14  jumping off a trampoline, Russell says. Off the

         15  floor your legs have to do work, off a trampoline,

         16  it does the work for you. Throw in the fact that

         17  metal, because its weight is more evenly distributed

         18  along the length of the bat can be swung faster than

         19  wood, and you begin to see why aluminum generates

         20  faster hit balls.

         21                 And then there are two charts here

         22  about NCAA statistics, batting statistics. They show

         23  what happens when aluminum bats were introduced into

         24  the game, it shows what happened when they put

         25  weight standards in, and what happened when they
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          2  applied their precious BESR standards. And while the

          3  weight restrictions of BESR standards did bring down

          4  some of the numbers, they are still substantially

          5  and significantly higher. Batting averages are 25

          6  points higher than they were before aluminum bats

          7  were introduced, and there are an average of 40 to

          8  50 percent more home runs.

          9                 Now, I submit to you, either the

         10  players are on steroids or the bats are on steroids.

         11  Pictures haven't gotten any slower, they haven't

         12  learned, not learned how to throw curve balls and

         13  all those other pictures. Something is different,

         14  and it's the bats.

         15                 And, so, this article makes the

         16  following point, is that if it's only five percent

         17  difference in speed, is that a significant risk to

         18  young people standing 60 feet away on a pitcher's

         19  mound. And some of the experts say, well, I don't

         20  know, I guess not. And I have to say I just can't

         21  even imagine why anyone would first choose to guess

         22  when the safety of kids are at stake. And second,

         23  just think for a second, even if we're talking about

         24  hundreds of a second, the difference between being

         25  able to move a glove from here to here, I can't even
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          2  quantify that second measure. That could be the

          3  difference in deflecting the ball heading straight

          4  for a young person's temple.

          5                 If it's one in 100,000, if it's one

          6  in a million, that is an injury that does not have

          7  to happen. Aluminum bats are not integral to the

          8  playing of competitive sports, the cost is greater

          9  in terms of health and safety.

         10                 And, finally, I want to say this to

         11  Mayor Bloomberg, and I have supported the Mayor's

         12  initiatives on smoking, and I have supported his

         13  initiatives on transfats, I don't understand why he

         14  thinks that this is an intrusion into an area that

         15  we don't belong in.

         16                 First of all, the vast majority of

         17  the games that we're talking about are being run by

         18  the City of New York. We are already intruding. We

         19  are setting the rules, we are establishing the

         20  parameters, we are paying for the sport, we are

         21  providing the coaches, the fields, the players, and

         22  the umpires. It is not an intrusion.

         23                 There is no difference in my mind

         24  between public health and public safety. If the

         25  Mayor can explain to me what the difference is about
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          2  why it is appropriate for us to intrude in issues of

          3  public health, and not to intrude into issues of

          4  public safety, particularly for kids, I'm all ears.

          5  I don't see it. We will never know in overriding

          6  this veto how many children's lives and health and

          7  safety we are saving, and I hope we will never find

          8  out.

          9                 I suspect we will be sued. Shame on

         10  the bat manufacturers for that. But I am sure that

         11  when and if we get to court, any judge will see what

         12  any 12-year-old can see about a metal bat. It's too

         13  fast, it's too dangerous, it's an unnecessary risk.

         14                 I would ask Councilman Oddo, who is

         15  the prime sponsor of Intro., 341-A, if you would

         16  like to add anything before we move to a vote on the

         17  override?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman, and thank you for your unwaivering support

         20  on this and you captured it perfectly.

         21                 I would just say in reference to that

         22  chart, it was a good article. I would respectfully

         23  say that that chart is inaccurate in that it frames

         24  the issue the wrong way. This is not a question of

         25  metal bats today versus metal bats of the 1990s and
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          2  the 1980s; this is a question of metal bats and how

          3  they perform, versus wood bats and wood standard.

          4  Because as you said, this is about risk, and it's

          5  our belief that they pose an unreasonable risk.

          6                 I just want to thank my colleagues

          7  for standing tall on this, for standing tall in the

          8  face of veto override, and for standing tall against

          9  a continued public relations onslaught, which has

         10  included really factually inaccurate, and I think

         11  absolutely morally bankrupt editorials where they

         12  have blatantly lied. They don't really apparently

         13  care about the truth, and it makes you wonder, if

         14  they're willing to lie so blatantly about an issue

         15  like metal bats, what are they doing on issues about

         16  war and international strive? It really falls into

         17  the credibility of entire institutions and tabloids

         18  in this City.

         19                 I also just again would like to thank

         20  the staff, particularly Laura Popa, for her endless

         21  hours of work. And, again, to my colleagues, I've

         22  grown weary because I know you have grown weary of

         23  refuting point by point in great detail the growing

         24  desperation on the other side. But you folks

         25  received a letter from the Louisville Slugger
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          2  recently, where I can literally go point-by-point

          3  and refute it, including blatant lies saying that

          4  the Chair and I have alluded to a Brown study where

          5  we've actually gone on the record and stipulated, to

          6  take that silly argument away from them, we've

          7  stipulated that the Brown study doesn't apply

          8  because it had minus five bats instead of minus

          9  threes, but it has not stopped them from putting out

         10  lie after lie after lie. And they are in

         11  unaccustomed territory. It is late in the game, to

         12  use a baseball pun, and they are losing and they

         13  have never lost, and they can't believe that they're

         14  losing, and they are losing because you folks have

         15  been willing to take some heat, unfair heat in my

         16  mind, and do the right thing.

         17                 This is about risk and us not willing

         18  to take an unacceptable risk for our kids. And I

         19  just want to thank you for your friendship and thank

         20  you for your support in doing the right thing yet

         21  again by the kids.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you,

         24  Councilman Oddo. I also want to extend my thanks to

         25  the entire staff, starting with Laura, for putting
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          2  up with all of this, too. This has been a long,

          3  arduous issue.

          4                 Somebody said this isn't the most

          5  important issue, you know, facing the City of New

          6  York, and my message to those folks is that the

          7  Council is able to multi-task, we're able to work on

          8  a lot of important issues. And I am a parent whose

          9  children have both played Little League Baseball,

         10  Little League of course is not directly affected by

         11  this bill, but I know that when my kids were out on

         12  the field, I thought their health and safety was the

         13  single-most important thing that was going on. So,

         14  important is very much in the mind of the beholder.

         15                 At this point I'm going to call for a

         16  vote. First we have to accept the Mayor's veto

         17  message.

         18                 Yes, Council member.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Chair. And first of all, I want to say,

         21  you know, how glad I am and we all are that you're

         22  feeling better. Your absence was sorely missed. It

         23  just wasn't the same. And we count on your ongoing

         24  leadership.

         25                 I intend to remain consistent with my
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          2  previous vote and position, and that is in this case

          3  to vote to sustain the legislation enacted by this

          4  Council and thus to overturn the Mayor's veto.

          5                 I want to commend your efforts and

          6  those of my colleague to my left, Council Member

          7  Oddo seated to my left, and because I recognize that

          8  this has been a tireless, and not easy struggle for

          9  both of you, and what lies behind your commitment is

         10  your passion for the health and safety of all of our

         11  children.

         12                 As I stated when I cast my vote at

         13  the last meeting, I was doing so to err on the side

         14  of caution, to err on the side of safety. We should

         15  point out this is a narrowly tailored bill, there

         16  has been a lot of misperception in the community.

         17  This doesn't in any way ban the sale of aluminum

         18  bats in stores. This is a narrowly tailored bill to

         19  a specific age group, an older age group who have

         20  the more powerful muscles of course in specified

         21  competitive settings which are done under public

         22  auspices. And given that and given the concerns

         23  raised, it behooves us to act, since the public

         24  auspices under which these competitions are taken

         25  are supported in many ways by City government and
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          2  the Council, it behooves us to act erring on the

          3  side of caution.

          4                 However, just as I conclude my

          5  statement, I mean I do think it is important to note

          6  that this is an issue on which well-meaning people,

          7  people who have the best interests of children at

          8  heart have fallen out on both sides, have come out

          9  on both sides of this issue, and this also is an

         10  issue where technology, including technology of

         11  non-wooden baseball bats changes and evolves as any

         12  technology now-a-days does at rapid pace. So, I vote

         13  the way I do with the understanding that, you know,

         14  this Council, as we should in all issues, remain

         15  open to changes and new evidence, if such presents

         16  itself to us, and I also call upon the Department of

         17  Education, and its appropriate athletics departments

         18  and offices, to undertake an objective non-bias

         19  study, because there are other age groups who are

         20  involved in competitions, which we are not dealing

         21  with in this legislation, and as I called for them

         22  previously, and the Department declined to go

         23  forward with such studies, and that is one reason I

         24  am voting the way I am, in the absence of the

         25  Department's willingness to undertake that study.
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          2  So, I urge the Department now, with PSAL and other

          3  involved public agencies involved with youth

          4  athletics, to do the necessary objective evaluation

          5  with regard to athletic safety, come up with a clear

          6  analysis of statistics which has been cited on both

          7  sides, and report their findings to the Council as

          8  this Council will, I expect, remain open to new

          9  findings and new evidence, if such presents itself

         10  to us. In the meantime, we have to act. It is

         11  baseball season, and I do so, again, erring on the

         12  side of safety in the most cautious interpretation

         13  of the evidence available before us.

         14                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you,

         16  Council Member Gerson. Does anyone wish to speak

         17  before we go to a vote?

         18                 Okay, in that case, we are now ready

         19  for a vote. The questions before us are shall we

         20  accept and file the Mayor's veto message; and shall

         21  Intro. 341-A pass the objection of the Mayor

         22  notwithstanding? I certainly urge a yes vote.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: A point of

         24  information, Mr. Chair?

         25                 Just out of curiosity, what would the
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          2  procedural status of this be if we were to vote not

          3  to accept the Mayor's message?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I don't think

          5  anybody knows. I think we should just accept the

          6  message and move on.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I will accept

          8  your advice, but for the future I would like

          9  Council, since we are taking a vote on this, I'd be

         10  curious to know for the future and I'd like to be so

         11  advised.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Some things we

         14  just do for history, Alan.

         15                 All right, and to complicate matters

         16  even further, Mr. Martin informs me that I cannot

         17  couple those two votes. So, you must first vote to

         18  accept and file the message. So, would you please

         19  call the roll on the first question on whether you

         20  should accept and file the Mayor's veto message? I'd

         21  like to file it.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gerson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: On the issue

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  of filing --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: If you explain

          4  your vote, you've had it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: In that case,

          6  I'll vote aye to accept and file.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Okay, vote stands at

         16  six in the affirmative, no negatives, no

         17  abstentions. Motion to file.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay. Having

         19  accepted and filed it, shall Intro. No. 341-A pass

         20  the objection of the Mayor notwithstanding? And I'll

         21  ask the clerk to call the roll on that question, and

         22  I urge a vote in the affirmative.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gerson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: May I be

          5  excused to explain my vote, Mr. Chair? I would be

          6  voting on the affirmative on the override and I just

          7  want the record to make clear that, you know, there

          8  are many speculations that the override of this veto

          9  and putting forward this legislation is going to

         10  have a devastating impact on children, particularly

         11  of minority communities, participating in the

         12  baseball. I would say that's extremely false, and

         13  when we look at the fact of what the body, we're

         14  trying to do legislatively, is looking at the

         15  overall picture of safety, particularly of young men

         16  and women when they are practicing baseball in a

         17  private or a public school setting, I think that the

         18  overall picture and what needs to be weighed is are

         19  they doing it in the most safest way possible. And I

         20  think having one incident or two incidents would be

         21  one incident or two incidents too many in putting at

         22  risk the safety of children, especially when they're

         23  in a school setting.

         24                 And for those that believe that this

         25  is going to kill baseball, I think that on the
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          2  contrary, I think that when they're playing with a

          3  wooden bat they're actually enhancing their skills,

          4  if they're looking to pursue a career as a

          5  professional baseball player, because in

          6  professional baseball we don't use metal bats.

          7                 So, I think at the end of the day

          8  baseball will continue to live in public high

          9  schools and throughout our communities, and I want

         10  to commend Council Member Oddo for his commitment

         11  and setting his goals straight in terms of making

         12  sure that everybody understands the impact that

         13  using a metal bat has and how devastating it could

         14  be in terms of ending a young life. So, again I vote

         15  aye. And thank you, Mr. Chairman, also for your

         16  persistence in bringing this legislation forward.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I also want to

         18  publicly thank you for covering the Youth Services

         19  meeting in my absence, and doing such an able job on

         20  such a difficult hearing.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Mr.

          3  Chairman, may I be temporarily excused to explain my

          4  vote?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

          7                 First, let me start by saying that in

          8  Queens County, the Catholic Youth Organization

          9  banned aluminum bats some three years ago, and all

         10  the naysayers that came into my office and sent

         11  letters that were in opposition to this bill all

         12  said it made sure the kids would be disinterested in

         13  playing ball and that it would hurt statistics, it

         14  would hurt the game, the truth is that that's

         15  opposite of what is occurring in CYO in Queens

         16  County. More kids are joining each and every year,

         17  since the aluminum bats were banned, kids are

         18  learning how to play ball much more fundamentally,

         19  and there seems to be a new enthusiasm for baseball

         20  throughout CYO. So, I'm happy and I'm very

         21  comfortable with my decision today for voting in the

         22  affirmative on the override.

         23                 But I also want to talk about three

         24  witnesses that came before this Council. One was

         25  Joseph Domalewski, who talked about the issue with
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          2  his son Steven, the other folks were Jack Carlson

          3  and Deb Patch, who talked about what occurred with

          4  their son Brandon, and the third was former Met

          5  pitcher John Franco. The two, Mr. Domalewski and the

          6  Patches, showed us what could happen and what should

          7  never happen again in baseball, if we have our

          8  ability to change the law. And John Franco, as an

          9  expert of 20 some odd years of professional ball,

         10  came before this Council and said not only as a

         11  professional athlete and a professional ballplayer,

         12  but as a father, and a coach, that said the aluminum

         13  bats are clearly dangerous, and he was telling me

         14  one on one, he said people are crazy if they don't

         15  think that ball comes off that aluminum bat faster.

         16  I believed him. I believed his passionate testimony

         17  and felt very comfortable with the vote I was taking

         18  and I was proud to be a sponsor on this legislation.

         19                 So, to my colleagues, I want to

         20  congratulate you for taking this vote. I know how

         21  many people contacted me and how much pressure was

         22  put upon me. But I can make sure when I go to bed

         23  tonight and I put my head upon the pillow, and I'll

         24  rest comfortably knowing I believe that I have done

         25  something that will protect the safety of children
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          2  throughout the City of New York.

          3                 And to my colleague on the right,

          4  James Oddo, thank you for bringing forward this

          5  issue. Thank you for your passion. You two have

          6  maligned and criticized in the paper, but in the end

          7  you will be looked upon as somebody who did a great

          8  service for the residents of the City of New York.

          9                 So, and you, too, Mr. Chairman, thank

         10  you for your efforts. And I proudly vote aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at six

         12  in the affirmative, no negative and no abstentions.

         13  Intro. 341-A is adopted.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: We have one other

         15  member of the Committee who was ill yesterday, so I

         16  don't know if Council Member Mealy is on the way. We

         17  will hold the roll open on this issue. I remind my

         18  colleagues, it is usual for Youth Services to be

         19  voting on anything. We had three roll calls today,

         20  and we have one more panel on the 21st Century

         21  Leadership Resolution before we go to a vote on

         22  that. So, please don't leave.

         23                 I just want to finally, you know, say

         24  about the bat bill, we have probably never been so

         25  intensely lobbied on an issue that people have then
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          2  criticized us for saying wasn't important, and I

          3  just want to point out how quickly we would have

          4  been criticized by the tabloids had we folded in the

          5  face of that lobbying, but in fact I am very, very

          6  proud of this Council for standing up for kids

          7  because they don't have any lobbyists, and that is

          8  where we are at.

          9                 I'll call up our final Reso panel.

         10  Suzanne Goldstein from the New York State

         11  Afterschool Network; Katherine Eckstein, the

         12  Children's Aid Society; and James O'Neill from

         13  Sports and Arts Foundation.

         14                 Council Member Gallagher.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I vote aye.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: On the Reso

         17  Councilman Gallagher had to go, and if I indulge the

         18  rest of you? Yes, okay, go ahead.

         19                 MS. GOLDSTEIN: Good morning. I'm Sue

         20  Goldstein. I'm the Director of New York State After

         21  School Network. And as others who spoke earlier

         22  said, I want to thank Chairman Fidler and the

         23  members of the Committee for holding this hearing

         24  today and for your leadership on this issue in terms

         25  of supporting the continuation of 21st Century
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          2  Community Learning Centers.

          3                 I want to just take a moment and tell

          4  you about New York State After School Network. We're

          5  a public/private partnership, led by 14

          6  organizations at the State level, along with

          7  affiliated groups in regions throughout the State,

          8  and our focus is on expanding the quality and the

          9  availability of after school programs throughout the

         10  State.

         11                 Speaking here today, my views do not

         12  represent the positions of our State agency

         13  partners, but I am speaking in behalf of many after

         14  school program providers and supporters that are

         15  part of our Statewide network.

         16                 NYSAN was actually formed when the

         17  21st Century Program was moving from federal to

         18  State administration as an advisory group to work

         19  with the State Education Department on the rollout

         20  of the program and has continued since then to work

         21  very closely with SED on the development of quality

         22  standards, assessment tools and training to support

         23  the program. So, we're very strongly in support and

         24  given that this is the largest single funding stream

         25  in the State for after school programs, it is a key
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          2  leg, as we all know, in building and improving the

          3  system.

          4                 I want to thank you for this

          5  resolution and state that we are here testifying in

          6  support of it, and I also just want to mention a

          7  couple of things relative to issues that were raised

          8  earlier, in terms of not only current issues of

          9  making sure that programs that may be losing funding

         10  soon, will be able to continue to operate in the

         11  next year, but also that it is not too soon to be

         12  thinking about the broader issues that we need to

         13  address in order to ensure that these and other

         14  programs continue beyond this year. And one of the

         15  main things that NYSAN is working on is an agenda

         16  around the need for improved coordination at the

         17  State level among the various funding streams that

         18  support after school, which we believe is critical

         19  towards having the platform of policy at the State

         20  that will make sense for increasing resources, and

         21  we're going to be continuing to work at the State

         22  and the federal level to bring new resources into

         23  this area.

         24                 Thank you very much, and I'll be

         25  happy to take any questions.
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          2                 MS. ECKSTEIN: Good morning. Chairman

          3  Fidler and honorable Committee members, thank you

          4  for having me here today. My name is Katherine

          5  Eckstein and I am the Policy and Advocacy Specialist

          6  for Community Schools at The Children's Aid Society.

          7                 Through much of our 154-year history,

          8  after-school programs have figured prominently in

          9  our comprehensive services, and currently we serve

         10  more than 7,000 children in after school programs.

         11  1,675 of these youth in the 21st Century Community

         12  Learning Center Program.

         13                 Those of us who run these programs

         14  know firsthand the profound difference that they

         15  have in the lives of children and their families.

         16  We've heard that working parents can sleep well at

         17  night knowing that their children are in high

         18  quality, enriching programs, and we also know the

         19  profound difference that it makes in the lives of

         20  youth.

         21                 In our own evaluations at six of our

         22  middle schools that are running 21st Century

         23  programs, we found that middle school youth were

         24  significantly more likely to achieve proficiency on

         25  standardized test scores, if they participated
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          2  regularly in our after school program, and their

          3  attendance approved as well. So, I'm testifying

          4  today in support of City Council Resolution 742-A.

          5                 While we only have one program in

          6  cohort one that Lucy referred to serving 150 youth,

          7  what is at stake is much greater than our individual

          8  program.

          9                 As a member of the New York State

         10  After School Network and the Coalition for After

         11  School Funding, we know that State Education's

         12  decision will greatly affect programs like ours

         13  throughout New York State. And what is at stake is

         14  that young people, like the students at Fannie Lou

         15  Freedom High School in the Bronx won't have the

         16  opportunity to take music and dance or participate

         17  in debate.

         18                 I have heard them describe both to me

         19  and to members of the State Legislature how much of

         20  a difference this program makes in their lives.

         21                 We underline the importance of

         22  advocating on behalf of this with the federal

         23  government and advocates from around the country are

         24  working with the After School Alliance to do that,

         25  which is a national organization, and we also
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          2  applaud the State Legislature and the Governor for

          3  stepping in with the money that they have put in,

          4  whether it's 7.5 or 14 million. However, we know

          5  that it doesn't cover the amount needed, and our

          6  challenge is to figure out how to allocate this

          7  investment in a timely and fair manner.

          8                 And I also just want to applaud this

          9  Committee for supporting and making significant

         10  investments in high quality after school programs

         11  through the OST system and through the Beacons

         12  Program, so thank you. And more than ever I think we

         13  see how critical these funds are to ensuring that

         14  children in New York City have the opportunity to

         15  participate in high quality after school programs.

         16                 So, on behalf of the children and

         17  families with whom we work, and who we serve, the

         18  Children's Aid Society asks you to support

         19  Resolution No. 742-A. Thank you. I welcome any

         20  questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Jim, before you

         22  go, could I ask Rebecca Zook to please come up and

         23  join this panel from the United Way? Thank you.

         24                 Okay, Jim, jump in there.

         25                 DR. O'NEILL: Good morning, Mr.
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          2  Chairman, and members of the Youth Services

          3  Committee. I want to specifically thank the

          4  Chairman, you have been one of the great champions

          5  of after school for many years in New York City, in

          6  Brooklyn and all of the City, and, of course, New

          7  York City is, as Lucy mentioned, is a leader in the

          8  United States, in terms of after school programs.

          9                 21st century is the largest source of

         10  both either public or private funding to address the

         11  needs of children living in low-income

         12  neighborhoods, and attending failing schools, who as

         13  a result of this are at high risk of not completing

         14  high school.

         15                 21st Century dollars, and I don't

         16  think this point has been made yet by some of the

         17  presenters, is money that primarily goes into our

         18  low-income neighborhoods in New York City where the

         19  majority of our failing schools are.

         20                 These are monies that have a huge

         21  educational importance in terms of the City.

         22                 Sports & Arts is the largest

         23  recipient as a private non-profit CBO of 21st

         24  century monies in New York State. We have won more

         25  of these competitive grants than any other
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          2  organization, and we'll be very adversely affected

          3  by this cut.

          4                 Eighteen schools will lose over $1.8

          5  million in contracts held by Sports & Arts and

          6  managed by us through and with the New York City

          7  Department of Education. The impact will be over

          8  3,174 families. Two-hundred forty-nine employees

          9  lose their jobs as a result of this cut here.

         10                 There are many examples of how this

         11  program works to improve the lives of our children.

         12  It makes a huge difference in the quality of their

         13  lives. I have a few examples that represent various

         14  neighborhoods in New York City. Hollis Queens, at IS

         15  238, one of the SINI schools, this school, as a

         16  result of 21st Century funding, which is in the

         17  school, has made a tremendous turn-around. A

         18  dedicated principal in this middle school has

         19  changed the entire culture of the school. We've

         20  introduced tennis, sports, educational enrichment

         21  activities, arts, theater and a wonderful Broadway

         22  middle school production that actually went to

         23  Disney World as a result of this program.

         24                 In 285, in Canarsie, Brooklyn --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: 285 is in East
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          2  Flatbush.

          3                 DR. O'NEILL: In East Flatbush, excuse

          4  me. Close but not quite close enough. You know those

          5  schools. Well, this school has a very large

          6  immigrant Caribbean population today, as you know,

          7  and they've just completed a two-day Caribbean

          8  cultural heritage festival, which involved essay

          9  writing, steel bands, Islands foods, costume parade,

         10  and performances in the school, all part of a

         11  literacy-based cultural program. And Castle Hill in

         12  the Bronx, they have a fabulous fashion program that

         13  teaches literacy through fashion.

         14                 In Flushing High School, in my home

         15  borough, the 21st Century students, there were 40

         16  students that graduated from the program, they're

         17  seniors in the program. There are over 200 students

         18  in the program, 39 went to college. All

         19  multicultural minority students. At Wildcat Academy

         20  in the South Bronx, which is a school for kids who

         21  flunked out of other schools, it is their last

         22  chance to finish high school, last week I went on

         23  this trip with them, they went to Washington, D.C.,

         24  as part of their 21st Century Funding, they visited

         25  Howard University and also Georgetown. These are
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          2  students, over-age students who now want to go to

          3  college as a result of this program.

          4                 I have one other example in

          5  Manhattan. Community Prep High School, which is one

          6  of the Mayor's, Chancellor's new alternative high

          7  schools, which is filled with kids who dropped out

          8  of the system. Many of them are in the Juvenile

          9  Justice system, their attendance in school now has

         10  jumped dramatically as a result of the after school

         11  program. They're going to school now because after

         12  school they have sports, they have arts.

         13                 These programs make a huge

         14  difference, and I think with your leadership we have

         15  to go back to Albany. We can't allow these programs

         16  to fail. We have to go back to Albany and really, I

         17  think what happened, Mr. Chairman, and I've been

         18  working with our team here, I think there's been a

         19  lot of misinformation. I think everybody thought the

         20  money was there. I think the Governor thought

         21  everything would go on as normal, and there's all

         22  sorts of errors being made here and I don't want to

         23  be rude to any of the staff up there, but I think

         24  there was a lot of new people who came in with the

         25  new administration and I think it fell through the
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          2  cracks.

          3                 I don't think the Assembly, the

          4  Speaker, the State Senate or the Governor wants

          5  these programs to close, and I don't know what we do

          6  to do it, but this Committee, and I'm here to

          7  testify for the resolution, and I think we can go

          8  back and still fight for it. Thank you.

          9                 MS. ZOOK: Hi. Good morning. I'm

         10  Rebecca Zook, Director of Education Programs at

         11  United Way of New York City. I just want to thank

         12  the Committee for this wonderful opportunity, and

         13  obviously I'm here in support of the passage of

         14  Resolution 742-A.

         15                 I just want to speak very briefly

         16  about the three 21st Century Community Learning

         17  Center programs that United Way of New York City

         18  manages. I'm actually quite honored to be sitting

         19  next to Jim O'Neill, Sports & Arts In-Schools

         20  Foundation is one of our partners.

         21                 As I mentioned, United Way of New

         22  York City manages three 21st Century Community

         23  Learning Centers in three alternative high schools

         24  that service, specifically service over-age and

         25  under-credited young people, who in many cases would
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          2  be slated to drop out of high school.

          3                 One of the things that makes these

          4  programs so unique, aside from the fact that they

          5  give these students an opportunity to be exposed to

          6  wonderful dance programs and extremely enriching

          7  trips and arts that they otherwise would not have

          8  had an opportunity to participate in, is that the

          9  majority of the offerings that we have are credit

         10  bearing, the collaborations with the School

         11  administration are so positive that we are able to

         12  create activities in after school settings that give

         13  the kids credit towards graduation, and really help

         14  to prevent drop-out of a lot of kids that I think

         15  would otherwise be lost to the system.

         16                 I just want to piggy-back on what Jim

         17  had said. One of the programs that we have, which is

         18  a community prep high school, which Sports & Arts is

         19  our partner, all of the students are coming directly

         20  out of the Juvenile Justice System and that program

         21  is actually the only 21st Century Program of its

         22  kind serving specifically those youth and it gives

         23  those kids an opportunity to engage and participate

         24  in after school programs, just to participate on a

         25  basketball team that's organized and provides an
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          2  opportunity for students to connect with trusted

          3  adults to take trips, to go to Washington, D.C., to

          4  see colleges. It's very, very positive experience

          5  for these youth. We currently are serving roughly

          6  around 500 students in three programs and their

          7  families, a tremendous amount of family outreach

          8  work that goes on. The loss of this funding would be

          9  absolutely devastating. The loss of the opportunity

         10  to sometimes accumulate two and three additional

         11  credits towards high school graduation would be very

         12  devastating to students who are 18, 19, and

         13  sometimes 20 years old. This is the very, very last

         14  chance for them to complete the graduation

         15  requirements, and an opportunity for them to be

         16  exposed to either moving forward with meaningful

         17  work or pursuing higher education.

         18                 So, I very adamantly support the

         19  passage of this resolution, and I am quite honored

         20  to speak in front of the Committee, and thank you

         21  for the time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Thank you. I want

         23  to particularly thank Mr. O'Neill for pointing out

         24  something that I really should have pointed out in

         25  my opening statement, which is that 21st Century
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          2  leadership centers are in fact targeted to schools

          3  that are most in need, which makes this particular

          4  cut so severe. And I do hope that this is something

          5  that we can fix. We need to strategize somehow. I

          6  can only imagine that if the City Council or the

          7  Mayor were proposing to cut $15 million of after

          8  school programs that would close 50 after school

          9  programs in the City of New York and leave 10,000,

         10  15,000 children out in the street at 3:00, they'd be

         11  storming the gates of this building and well they

         12  should.

         13                 The fact that this is happening

         14  either in Albany or in Washington or in both doesn't

         15  make it any less imperative, and we just have to

         16  figure out a way to make people realize just how

         17  this is going to affect their children and their

         18  lives.

         19                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         20  questions for this panel before we vote on the

         21  resolution?

         22                 Councilwoman Gonzalez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: I just want

         24  to say thank you. I chair the Criminal Justice

         25  Committee and as much as we can do to ensure that
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          2  the children do not return to detention ever is

          3  great. So, I've been on this bill early on. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay, thank you

          6  to the panel. I will ask the clerk to call the roll

          7  on the resolution.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gerson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I vote yes,

         14  and I will, Mr. Chair, respectfully request to be

         15  added onto the resolution.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Okay, the vote stands

         22  at six in the affirmative, zero negatives, no

         23  abstention. Item passes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Okay, I'm going

         25  to once again ask the clerk to hold the roll open on
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          2  all the matters that we've voted on today for 15

          3  minutes after this hearing, on the chance that

          4  Council Member Mealy is well enough to make it here

          5  to vote. I want to thank my colleagues for their

          6  indulgence, particularly on the bat bill. As I said,

          7  I know this is something that you almost get tired

          8  of hearing at a certain point, and hopefully we have

          9  one more act to do. I thank all our witnesses for

         10  coming forward. The issue of the 21st Century

         11  Leadership funding I think is going to first become

         12  a matter of public concern in a much greater way

         13  than it has, and I hope this resolution which will

         14  be passed by the Council next Monday will help to do

         15  that. I don't think parents realize how many of

         16  their kids are going to be losing their programs

         17  come this summer if this funding is not restored.

         18  Again, I want to thank the Committee staff for all

         19  their work on all of these things, or former

         20  counsel, Laura Popa, particularly, on the bat bill;

         21  Elisa Chae, Jen Culp, Michael Benjamin, and with

         22  that, I adjourn this hearing.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 11:49 a.m.)

         24
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